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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Warder-Totten liouse (the Lutheran Church Center) is the onlv stru

ture designad by the firm of H.H., Richardson remaining in the District o
Columbia. Originally commissioned by Warder inrlSSBE”the building was v
constructed on its present site in 1925 by Totten and now faces west at
16th Street between Euclid and Fuller Streets Northwes+® in the Meridian H
section of the District. The OPianal house i3 more or less L-shaped al-
theugh quite irrerulqr in vlan. At the novtheast end of the building are an
io which originallv existed on the lot (the home of Totten).
and southwest wings form a richt angle and are connected on
by a semi-circular tower containing an entrance. The north-
; woximately 33 -t long (2 bavs) on the west zide which is
ﬁaralipl to 16th Street and projects 30 feet (2 bavs)from the tower. The
“Odthwﬁ:’ wing extends south Ffrom the tower approximately 35 feet (2 bavs) on
6th Street side and is about L5 feet deep (U bays) on its south cwdo¢ The
ﬂorth aide of the building is longer and extends back about 170 feet., A one~
story open arcaded wall added Ly Totten extends out from the northwest wing
across the rront of the building. The Warder llouse is four stories high plus
basement; the annex is three stories and the studio, two stories high.

Although the massing, heaviness, and the renes‘crahon are verv Richard-
sonian in character, the detailing shows the influence of 16th Century TFrench
and Byzantine motifs, Unlike many Richardsopian structures which are of
rough granite, the warder—TQtten house is of smooth sandstone, There are two
main entrances to the building--one (which is now closed) on the west facade
of the northwest wing and the other in the tower.

The first story of the west facade of the northwest wing contains a door
and two straight-topped rectanpular windows divided by stone mullions. The
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tailing of which has been attributed to John Galen Howard, The door itself

is a replica of the original which was donated to the Smithsonian's National
Musuem by R.P. Whitty whe had the contract to demolish the bhuilding. (Totten
tried unsuccessfully to persuade the Smithsonian to return the door, and thus
was forced to make a plaster cast of the original) The gecond floor windows
of the west facade are rectangular, 1/1L light windows with stone mullions and
rectanpgular transoms--a common feature of Richardsonian Romanesque. Above
the transom is a band of egg and dart molding. The third story contains
rectangular windows with stone mullions but no transoms; again epg and dart
molding is found above the windows. The fourth story contains three small
rectangular 1/1 windows in the gablej above each window is a red flower motif
and above this a voussoir motif. The line of the gable is accented by a band
of egg and dart molding and a decorative stylized lion head is found above
the copper guttering on the northern corner of the gable,

-The fenestration of the south facade of the northwest wing is similar to
‘that“ escribed on the front, This type of fenestration is continued on the
tower,éxeppt for the ton story which contains ornamented capitals between
) and a styvlized voussoir motif above each window and under the
tower,
est facade of the south wing is the most varied. The third story
/LWO centered-arched arcades separatal by heavy, short columns with
yed capitals. The fourth atorv contains an arcade with straight-top-

,peugﬁvéhca separated by thin columns on pedestals with decorated capitals and

P

an ironwork balustrade that is not oricinal. (Continued on Form 10-300a)

round-arched portal containg ornamented extrados, capitals and tympanum the Ag-
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Warder-Totten House
(Lutheran Church Center) a Category II landmark of importance which contri-
butes significantly to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the Dis-
trict of Columbia, Benjamin Warder commissioned the firm of H.H. Richardson
in 1885 to design the house at 1509 K Street NV, The design of the house,
however, can be more directly attributed to Richardson's assistants George
F. Shepley and Charles A, Coolidge than it can be to Richardson himself,
This is evident in the 16th Century French and Bvzantine detailing as well
as the choice of a smooth-faced sandstone for the exterior., The massing,
the fenestration, and the use of arches however, are characteristic of
Richardsonian Romanesque., The house was razed in 1923 and the materials
bought by Major Georse Oaklev Totten, Jr., a prominent Washington architect.
In 1925, Totten reconstructed the house at 2633 1Ath Street NW in the
Meridian Hill section of the District of Columbia, Of four Washington
buildings desipned by the Firm of H,H, Richardson, the Warder-Totten house
is the only surviving structure,

Benjamin H. Warder, a wealthy farm implerment manufacturer moved to Wash-
ington, D.C., from Springfield, Ohio, in 1885 after the firm of Warder,
Bushnell and Glessner merged with International Harvester Company. In March
of 1885, Warder commissioned the firm of H,H, Richardson to design his
Washington home which he and his family occupied in 1887, (It is of
interest to note that in May of the same vear his partner Glessner also
commissioned Richardson to design his Chicago home,)

Henry Hobson Richardson (1838-86) was an architect of major importance in
the development of American architecture. He first studied at Harvard and
then went to Paris where he studied architecture at the Fcole des Beaux
Arts., His Romanesque stvle came to be known as "Richardsonian Romanesque'
and was much imitated, especially after his death. Richardson also had a
profound influence on the work of Root and Sullivan.

Major George Oakley Totten, (1866-1939) an admirer of the Warder house,
happened by the building the dav it was being demolished, and hought the
materials with the idea of reconstructing it later, Totten, a prominent
Washington architect, was chief designer of the office of the Supervising
Architect of the Treasury until 1898 when he resigned to establish an in-
dependent practice., Totten developed a large and successful practice.

Mrs. John B. Henderson commissioned him to design many buildings in Meridian
Hill in a successful effort to develop the area as a center for legations.
These structures include the Fcuadorian Embassy and the Inter-American
Defense Board (the Pink Palace).

(Continued on Form 10-300a)




Richardson and His

Hitchcock, Hnnr" Ruaqell.'The”AfchltectuPe of H.H.
Magsachusetts: MIT Press, 1961.

Pamphlets published by the Lutheran Church Center including "History of the
Lutheran Church Center." (1954)

Information from files of Mrs. Ruth Blackburn, National Lutheran Council.

Information from files of National Collection of Fine Arts,
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7. Description -~ Warder-Totten House

At the rear of the building, the entrance to Totten's original house still
remains: the door and windows are embellished with Neo-classical motifs.,

The red tile saddleback roof has ornamental copper work along the cornice
linej the roof of the tower is capped by an ornamental finial, The original
decorative cresting along the top ridge of the roof has disappeared. There
have been several changes in the roof line of the northwest wing; the roof
above the arcade on the west facade of the southwest wing has been changed
from its original overhang, and one chimney to the south of the tower has
been removed.

In addition to the changes in the roof mentioned above, the only other
major change to the front facade is the closing of the entrance under the
building and the replacement of the solid wall in front by an arcaded wall
which extends 15 feet beyond the building to the south and allows for a
drive in front of the house.

When Totten reconstructed the house, he did not follow the original
interior floor plan but instead remodeled the interior using some of the
original woodwork to accommodate three "apartments de luxe" (one to a floor).
A mantle and overmantle were donated to the National Museum. (This mantle
together with the portal mentioned above are now stored in the Smithsonian's
warehouse in Suitland, Maryland).

8. Significance

In 1925 Totten reconstructed the house on 16th Street in front of an
existing studio and house which he had built in 1919 and 1921, Although
the exterior was rebuilt as accurately as possible, the interior was altered
to accommodate an apartment house with each of the upper floors containing
one apartment. After the death of Totten, the building was purchased by
Henry Slaughter who continued to use it as an apartment house. In September
of 1946, it was purchased by the Kabat-Kaiser Institute and remodeled to
accommodate a clinic, The National Lutheran Council purchased the house in
1953, remodeled the structure and installed air-conditioning.




